FILED

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

510 J. WHITE JUN 17 1996

LARRY D. RICHARDSON,			CLERK, SUPPLINE COUNT
			Clifel Doputy State
Appellant,			
	Supreme Co	ourt No.:	86,011
vs.			
STATE OF FLORIDA,			
Appellee.			

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF

PAUL J. DUBBELD, ESQUIRE FLORIDA BAR NUMBER 313491 444 SEABREEZE BLVD., STE. 720 DAYTONA BEACH, FLORIDA 32118 (904) 255-2864

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Appellant, LARRY D. RICHARDSON, will be referred to as Appellant, Defendant or by his proper name. The government will be referred to as the State or the prosecutor.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Appellant, LARRY D. RICHARDSON, (hereinafter referred to as Appellant) was charged by Indictment in three counts, to wit:

- a) First degree murder, in violation of F.S. 782.04(1)(a) one and/or two capital felony;
- b) Armed robbery with a firearm or a deadly weapon in violation of F.S. 812.13(1) and (2)(a), a first degree felony punishable by life imprisonment;
- c) Burglary of a dwelling, in violation of F.S. 810.02(2)(a) and/or (b), a first degree felony not exceeding life. (R-01-02).

A handgun was alleged in said Indictment. The Office of the Public Defender in and for Seventh Judicial Circuit entered its Notice of Appearance and entry of plea of not guilty coupled with an Affidavit of Indigency on or about January 17, 1992. (R-6-7). Previous thereto, said office entered a Notice of Invocation of Right to Counsel and Right to Remain Silent on or about January 13, 1992. (R-5).

The Appellant, through counsel, filed his Notice of Intent to Participate in Discovery on or about January 28, 1992. (R-8). Appellant, through counsel, filed a Motion for a Statement of Particulars, Request for Criminal Background History of Victim on

or about January 28, 1992. (R-8-11). Appellant, through counsel, requested that a mental health expert be appointed pursuant to 3.216(a) Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure on or about February 11, 1992. (R-12-13). Judge Graziano entered her order as presiding judge appointing said expert pursuant to the Appellant's Motion for Appointment. Jockeying occurred between counsel for the State and the Appellant with various motions to each particular expert. (R-34,43). The Appellant was found competent to assist in his defense and was found sane for the time-frame of any of the instant allegations.

The State filed motions to obtain fingerprint exemplars with said motion being granted by the Honorable Judge Graziano on March 19, 1992. (R-46). Additionally, said Court entered its order on that same date authorizing the taking of samples of blood and hair from the Appellant. (R-61).

On or about April 3, 1992, Assistant State Attorney David Damore filed the State's request for attendance of out-of-state witness. (R-68-70). Said motion requested an order that

The parties ultimately stipulated to Dr. Davis on March 27, 1992. (R-64).

Appellant's father, James Richardson, be ordered to appear before the lower tribunal on the instant cause.²

Appellant's Motion to Suppress Statements was filed on or about May 12, 1992. Said Motion to Suppress objected to all statements made to Detective John Ladwig while Appellant was incarcerated and while he was a suspect in the murder case of the instant cause. (R-90). Further, in the said motion, Appellant objected on at least six (6) occasions to Detective John Ladwig visiting him in custody despite the fact that the Appellant had contacted the said Detective on only two (2) occasions. (R-92).

Appellant's aforenoted Motion to Suppress also argued the issue of confidentiality pursuant to plea negotiations. (R-93-94).

The lower court entered its order on or about May 20, 1992, compelling Florida Department of Law Enforcement to analyze unknown fingerprints. (R-168).

The State filed its Notice of Intent to Offer Similar Fact Evidence on or about May 21, 1992. (R-180-183). The defense moved on or about May 21, 1992, for a motion for pretrial ruling regarding admissibility of William's Rule testimony. (R-184-185). The lower court entered its amended order dated July 15, 1992,

² Case bears docket number CRC 92-30089 CFAES, Larry <u>Dean</u>

granting Appellant's Motion to Suppress as to all statements made February 14, 1991, at the Daytona Beach Police Department. Further, said court granted Appellant's Motion to Suppress as to all statements made at the Volusia County jail prior to November 21, 1991. Finally, regarding said challenged statements, the lower tribunal denied Appellant's Motion to Suppress as to statements made before November 21, 1991. (R-209-210).

The State's Motion for Pretrial Ruling Regarding Admissibility of William's Rule Testimony, (R-184-185), disallowed by the lower court as to all similar fact evidence contained in the State's Notice of Intent. (R-217-218). State thereafter filed its timely Notice of Appeal, (R-219), and a Motion to Stay Proceedings and Toll Speedy Trial. (R-220). Said Request to Stay Proceedings was granted by the lower tribunal. (R-221). The Fifth District Court of Appeal of the State of Florida issued its opinion on July 2, 1993. (R-247-257). The court therein held specifically that the State had presented issues which may be appealed by the State pursuant to Rule 9.140(c)(1)(B), Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure. (R-250). Said court disallowed introduction of the evidence regarding the possession of a firearm on February 11, 1991, juxtaposed with the

death of the instant victim on February 14, 1991. (R-253). However, the said court disagreed with the lower tribunal and sanctioned the introduction of evidence regarding the Floyd homicide as a collateral crime relevant to prove Appellant's motive to commit the charged offense. (R-255). The court also considered a phone call Appellant made to his father wherein he allegedly told his father that he needed money to leave town because he had "just killed a man". (R-256). The court concluded also that the State should be allowed to show that the bullets that killed Floyd and the instant victim came from a .22 caliber firearm, were consistent in class characteristics and could have come from the same firearm. (R-257). The State at trial failed to do so over objection of the Appellant. (R-T3-5034-5035). Finally, the court decided that statements made by the Appellant to the police on February 14, 1991, were admissible. (R-257). such testimony was introduced by the State.

The record is replete with the Appellant's repeated attempts to represent himself. Appellant was eventually successful in his attempt to have self-representation. An attorney was appointed as advisory counsel for the Appellant. (R-261).

 $^{^3}$ For example, Appellant filed a formal motion that was denied. (R-224-226). Appellant filed again on, (R-234-239), said motion was denied (R-240).

Thereafter, a Motion for Clarification of Status of Counsel was filed. (R-277-278). Four days subsequent to the filing of said motion for clarification, Appellant filed a Motion for Self-Representation. (R-279). Ultimately, Appellant's first attempt at jury selection was incredibly self-destructive, ineffective and combative in nature with members of the venire. Appellant relented and allowed counsel to be appointed as full-time counsel in preparation of anticipated trial. The case was mistried due to a hung jury for trial number one and likewise mistried on trial number two.

Appellant again decided to be his own counsel for his third trial. Appellant conducted his own jury selection after which counsel was then appointed. Upon being convicted of all counts contained in said Indictment, Appellant chose to act as his own counsel for death penalty purposes. Appellant had informed counsel before the court on record on many occasions that he

⁴ Appointed counsel had been designated as standby counsel whose sole purpose was to merely advise Appellant as to the law.

would not contest the death penalty phase.5

The State filed a Motion in Limine regarding a letter "authored by Christian Taylor" (sic). (R-398-399). The letter essentially was composed by an unknown individual, but was delivered to Henry Christian who in turn tendered the letter to Paul Crow, 6 Chief of Police, Daytona Beach Police Department.

Counsel for the Appellant filed a Motion for DNA Testing.

(R-423-425). Said motion was filed subsequent to Appellant's first mistrial, as aforenoted and prior to trial number two. Said motion was founded in the notion that Dr. Botting had testified at trial number one that significant hair particles were retrieved from the victim's hands. Said motion was denied.

Counsel for the Appellant filed a Motion to Dismiss Indictment, (R-445-447), and an Amended Challenge to Panel. (R-

⁵ Appellant thereby waived the Statement of Particulars regarding aggravating circumstances, the reasons the death penalty was sought and the theory of prosecution underlined murder in the first degree, (R-138-141); Motion to Elect and Justify Aggravating Circumstances, (R-142-144); Motion for Disclosure of Impeaching Information, (R-145-148); Motion to Compel Disclosure of Mitigating Circumstances, (R-149-152); Motion for Disclosure of Penalty Phase Evidence, (R-153-157); Motion for Production of Favorable Evidence, (R-158-162); Motion for Recess of Trial Between Guilt Verdict and Penalty Phase, (R-162-166).

⁶ Mr. Christian's testimony is contained in trial number one at (R-T1-2067-2084). The trial court thereafter disallowed said testimony in trial number three despite the fact that the letter purportedly stated that the author of the said letter knew and mentioned specifically two names.

448-450). Said motions centered on the fact that the Black registered voters in Volusia County are fixed at approximately 5.8% of the total number of registered voters while the Black population of Volusia County comprises at least 18% of the general population of Volusia County.

The Appellant purportedly had entered into a stipulation⁷ on July 13, 1994, while representing himself. (R-321-322). A brief copy of said interview which was the subject of the stipulation occurred on October 6, 1994, may be found on the record.⁸ (R-403-405). Appellant filed an application with the trial court to withdraw from said stipulation. (R-495-499).

Appellant filed a Motion to Proceed "On Pro Se"(sic), on or about April 12, 1995. Concomitantly, Appellant's counsel filed a Motion for Continuance stating that he was not prepared and needed time to review files prior to the trial scheduled April 17, 1995. (R-505-506). Said motion was denied. Appellant's motion was couched solely on the basis that he did not feel as if he was prepared for trial. The Appellant specifically noted that he felt as if he had been forced out of self-representation by the court's ruling. (R-4660). No further inquiry was conducted

⁷ Stipulation to admit Appellant's father's statement.

⁸ Said statement was read into the record over objection at all three trials.

before Appellant was disallowed pro se representation and before trial counsel was yet again appointed. (R-4663.) Trial counsel was required to assume position of trial counsel and said attorney attempted to decline representation. (R-4664). Counsel then filed his written Motion to Withdraw on or about April 17, 1995. (R-510-511).

Appellant was adamant about self-representation and noted to the court that he was essentially being forced out of pro se representation. (R-4660). Trial counsel notified the court that he had been previously notified by the Florida Bar Hotline that he must abide by an order entered by the court regarding representation, (R-4665), and moved for a Motion to Continue. Counsel noted that he was not prepared and asked for a mere two days to get ready. (R-4665). Counsel moved for a mistrial based upon the court's ruling and the same was denied. (R-4666). Counsel requested that voir dire be reopened in order to be assured that a fair jury was impaneled. (R-4669). Said motion was denied. (R-4669).

Appellant again affirmed that he repeatedly notified counsel that he was not to investigate or pursue any efforts or present

⁹ Counsel noted that the case had been twice litigated by both himself and the prosecutor and both had received transcripts of the second trial "just past Wednesday".

any evidence or testimony regarding the death penalty should the State achieve a conviction. (R-4676-4677). No Court inquiry regarding this issue occurred.

Counsel for the State argued as to Defendant's statements made on November 21, 1991, in opening statement. (R-4701). Counsel for the Appellant reluctantly objected. (R-4701-4702). Said objection was over-ruled. Said objection was founded in the order granting Appellant's Motion to Suppress. 11

Appellant, through counsel, timely made his Motion for Judgment of Acquittal as to all three counts. Said motion was renewed timely. Appellant was found guilty on or about April 25, 1995, on all three counts contained within the subject Indictment. (R-538-540).

Appellant filed his "Notice of Mitigating Evidence" on or about April 27, 1995. (R-558). The court did not conduct an adequate inquiry when the Appellant announced that he was going to proceed in pro se during his death penalty phase. The jury recommended a sentence of death on or about April 27. 1995. (R-564). Despite that Appellant expressed his wishes to represent himself, an order was entered by the Honorable Kim C. Hammond on

Counsel noted his reluctance to object during opening statements.

¹¹ Paragraph two (R-207).

or about April 28, 1995, directing trial counsel to submit a memorandum of law to the court. (R-565). Counsel timely filed his memorandum of law. (R-566-69). The Appellant demanded that the memorandum be withdrawn in that he objected to any representation of counsel. The sentencing court noted the same. (R-543).

This timely Notice of Appeal ensued. (R-573).

This court has jurisdiction. Article V, Section 3(b)(1), Florida Constitution.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Carrie Lee was killed February 14, 1991, within the confines of her home. Her neighbor, Henry Christian saw smoke, entered the home and found the bloodied crime scene. Detective John Ladwig, Daytona Beach Police Department was the first officer on the scene. Frank Auman, Daytona Beach Police Department was initially the lead investigator, although, Ladwig assumed that role at a later time.

The coroner testified that the cause of death was from one of several factors, to wit: multiple stab wounds to the body and head; the cracking of the skull with a skillet; a small caliber gunshot wound in the ear; and/or a vicious battering by the claw end of a hammer. The Appellant was a boarder in one of Ms. Lee's rooms in one of her buildings. For unstated reasons Appellant became a suspect of the homicide by Daytona Beach Police Department. Police officers spoke with Appellant on the evening of the homicide within his room. Permission was given by the Appellant for a full and unlimited search of his room. The officers did in fact conduct said search and seized items from Appellant's room, although none introduced into evidence at any of the three trials. Further, the Appellant voluntarily stripped

so that his body could be examined for scratches or marks.

Appellant spoke with officers of the Daytona Beach Police

Department on the evening of the homicide which the 5th District

Court of Appeal found to be permissibly issued statements. None

of said statements were introduced at the trial by the State.

There was also a partial shoe imprint, in blood, reflecting a "LA Gear" in the kitchen area. (R-4892). The firearm was never recovered. A hammer, knife and skillet remained at the crime scene.

Dr. Arthur Botting, Medical Examiner in and for Seventh Judicial Circuit testified at the first two trials on the instant cause. Dr. Botting testified as to the hair clutched in both hands of the victim. (R-1888). The State announced that there were nine (9) hairs in the hands of the victim. (R-112).

The crime scene was quite bloodied because the struggle between the victim and her attacker ensued throughout the residence. The crime scene was thoroughly examined by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement and no fingerprints connecting the Appellant to the crime scene were introduced at trial. A safe in Ms. Lee's home was open and blood was spattered on it and the adjacent wall. Said safe was not wiped clean of fingerprints. There was no evidence of any items having been

taken from the home although an insurance claim was filed by the family of the deceased and papyment was made for two fur coats.

Counsel for defense provided this information to the government.

A FDLE technician found vague similarities between the bullet fragment recovered from the body of Ms. Lee and compared to another gun that was allegedly used by the Appellant in a separate homicide.

The Appellant was ultimately charged by Indictment and subsequent thereto was, by court order, required to submit to hair samples being plucked from various parts of his body.

The Appellant was visited by John Ladwig while incarcerated at the Volusia County Branch Jail on many occasions. During the visits of November 21, and November 22, 1991, the Appellant purportedly issued statements against interest. On the 22nd of November, 1991, John Ladwig delivered a written plea offer for the Appellant's acceptance.

Prior to the Appellant's arrest on the instant cause, Mr. Henry Christian received a letter from an unidentified source establishing the names of the two individuals who supposedly had committed this brutal homicide. Mr. Christian personally delivered said letter to Chief Paul Crow, Daytona Beach Police Department, and the letter was thereafter misplaced, lost or

destroyed by the Daytona Beach Police Department. Neither the Appellant nor counsel ever saw a copy of said letter.

The Appellant purportedly called his father on February 13, 1991, in Massachusetts and made the admission that he had killed somebody and needed money to get out of town. A "stipulation" was entered into by the Appellant while acting in pro se, and the Office of the State Attorney. The stipulation called for admissibility of the entire statement issued by the father, James Richardson.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

First Issue: The court allowed a non-disclosed witness to testify over timely objection of the Appellant. Essentially, the coroner who testified at trial was not the coroner who conducted the autopsy. The State represented to the court that the witness, Dr. Reeves was listed; said representation was in error. No Richardson inquiry was allowed despite counsel's request.

<u>Second Issue</u>: The State was guilty of prosecutorial misconduct in securing a stipulation from the Appellant which was not of record.

The State committed prosecutorial misconduct by not disclosing that Investigator Ladwig had been noticed by a circuit judge in and for the Seventh Judicial Circuit as an official of the State who had no regard for his obligations to the administered oath.

The State committed prosecutorial misconduct by failing to produce material evidence of independent citizens specifically establishing the known names of the killers of the victim.

The prosecutor committed prosecutorial misconduct by intentionally leading the jury regarding evidence of hairs found in the victims hands. The prosecutor at the third trial was the

same prosecutor for all three trials. It is inconceivable that said Assistant would argue not only matters that were not introduced into evidence, but further would go so far as to fabricate evidence in argument to the jury.

The prosecutor improperly vouched for the credibility of the officers at trial.

The prosecutor attempted to shift the burden of proof to the defendant regarding matters that were not placed into evidence contrary to his obligation to preserve and defend the Constitution.

Third Issue: The Defendant, while representing himself in pro se attempted to negotiate a sentence on the case sub judice. Said negotiations were protracted and ultimately, Appellant was required to give a statement to the State for plea bargaining purposes. The lower tribunal erred in allowing these statements to be introduced into evidence in that said statements were issued pursuant to plea negotiations.

Fourth Issue: Appellant timely challenged the venire and filed a related Motion to Dismiss. The lower court erred in denying said motion. The Black members of the jury pool were pulled from the registered voters list. As such, and by

definition said pool was disproportionate to the general black population.

Fifth Issue: The Fifth District Court of Appeal erred in accepting the appeal from the Office of the State Attorney in that it substituted the trial court's factual findings and, without additional factual assessments determined in error that certain Williams Rule evidence was relevant.

<u>Sixth Issue</u>: The court's instruction regarding reasonable doubt deprived the Appellant of due process and of a fair trial.

<u>Seventh Issue</u>: 921.141 is constitutionally infirm for reasons set forth herein.

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