FILED

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

OCT 29 1995

CLEARY, SUPPLAY, COURT

The Chair Mappay Stark

LARRY D. RICHARDSON,

Appellant,

V .

CASE NO. 86,011

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

MARK S. DUNN
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Fla. Bar #0471852

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL The Capitol Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

he needed money to leave town because he had killed a man (item 3), the state may appeal the suppression of item 2 under rule 9.140(c) (1) (B). The murder of Floyd clarifies and explains Richardson's admission to his father the next day.

Alternatively, even assuming that the trial court's order suppressing evidence of the Floyd murder is not appealable as matter of right, we recognize that the state may seek common law certiorari review of the trial court's regarding this evidence as well as the evidence contained in items 1, 4, and 5. State v. Pettis, 520 So.2d 250, 253 (Fla. 1988). See also State v. Brea, 530 So.2d 924, 926 (Fla. 1988); State v. Smith, 586 So. 2d 1237, 1238 n.3 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991). Accordingly, consistent with the principles pronounced in Pettis, we grant common certiorari in this case in order to afford the state a full review of the trial court's order regarding items 1, 4, and 5.

State v. Richardson, 621 So. 2d 752, 754-55 (Fla. 5th DCA 1993).

Pursuant to Preston v. State, 44 So. 2d 939, 942 (Fla. 1984), all points of law adjudicated in the Fifth District's opinion supra constitute 'law of the case."

Richardson's position in his fifth claim, found at pp.58-66 of his brief, is contrary to this Court's precedent, which was correctly cited by the Fifth District as authority above. In State v. Pettis, supra, at 252-53, this Court opined:

Respondent argues that there is no authority for certiorari review of a pre-trial ruling excluding evidence. We disagree. Rule 9.140(c) of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure does limit matters which may be appealed by the state before

trial as of right. However, this limitation as to appeals is not a bar to this Court's power of discretionary review . . .

We believe, therefore, that the correct interpretation of Florida law is that if the requirements permitting certiorari jurisdiction otherwise exist, a pre-trial order excluding evidence which has the effect of substantially impairing the ability of the state to prosecute its case is subject to certiorari review.

See also, State v. Brea, supra. Richardson incorrectly relies on case law which was directly addressed in State v. Pettis, supra, at 253, as follows:

Our statements in State v. C.C.. State v. G.P., and Jones v. State that no right of review by certiorari exists in criminal cases if no right of appeal exists are limited to order of final dismissal. (Footnote omitted.) These cases shall not be construed to prohibit district courts of appeal from entertaining state petitions for certiorari from pretrial orders in criminal cases.

The Fifth District agreed that Judge Graziano properly held that Richardson's possession of a firearm on February 11 (State's item 1) and use of a small-caliber handgun in the February 14 murder of Carolyn Lee were not so similar or unique as to prove identity or common scheme (R.180-83, 248, 253)." It also concluded that Judge Graziano "correctly held that the state failed to show a sufficient connection between the missing handgun from the home of Richardson's aunt (State's item 4) and the unrecovered handgun

used in the murder of Lee (R.180-83, 253-54)." (Citation omitted.)

However, the appellate court disagreed with her ruling as to State items 2, 3, 5, and 6 as follows:

In this case, evidence of Floyd's murder on Febxuary 12 was relevant and admissible to show Richardson's motive for the subsequent murder of On February 13, Richardson called his father, explaining that he needed money so that he could leave town because he had "just killed a man." On February 14, Richardson allegedly broke into Lee's home and robbed and murdered her. Thus, despite its prejudicial nature, the evidence of Floyd's murder was admissible to show that Richardson's desire to avoid apprehension motivated him to commit the robbery and murder of Lee so that he could obtain money to leave Florida. (Citation omitted.) In presenting evidence of the February 12 murder of Floyd, however, the state may not transcend the bounds of relevancy to the February 14 murder of Lee or make the collateral offense a feature of its case against Richardson.

We additionally conclude that on remand the trial court should allow the state to show that the bullets which killed Floyd and Lee came from a .22 firearm, were consistent in characteristics, and could have come from the same firearm (item 5). In contrast to the evidence concerning the handgun missing from Richardson's aunt's home and the firearm in Richardson's possession on February 11, this establishes a connection between the firearm used to murder Floyd and that used to rob and murder (Citation omitted.) We recognize that the state cannot show conclusively that the bullets came from the same firearm, but this fact goes to the weight and not the admissibility of such evidence.

Finally, we conclude that the statements

Richardson made to the police on February 14, 1991 (item 6) axe admissible in evidence because such statements qualify as admissions against interest under section 90.803(18), Florida Statutes (1991), and are relevant. (Citation omitted, footnote omitted.)

We affirm the trial court's order denying the state's motion for pretrial ruling regarding Williams rule testimony as to items 1 and 4, reverse the order as to items 2 and 3, quash the order as to items 5 and 6, and remand this cause for further proceedings consistent with this opinion. (R.256-57)

State v. Richardson, supra, at 757-58.

Richardson's argument as to jurisdiction in his fifth claim is erroneous, and he incorrectly relied upon authority which this Court clearly addressed in *State v. Pettis, supra.* Not only did the Fifth District correctly accept jurisdiction over this cause, but its opinion correctly cites the law on the same. Said opinion is the "law of the case," and the admission of the complained of Williams Rule evidence at trial, based upon its ruling, was correct.

Richardson's argument at pp.59-65 of his brief that the trial court correctly suppressed 'irrelevant evidence" is also erroneous. In his argument, at p.65, he incorrectly asserts "there is no showing that the killing was motivated by sudden need to escape town . . ." Yet, he also argued: 'The State attempted to show

that the Appellant did need money prior to the Lee killing by the introduction of statements purportedly issued to appellant's father." The State respectfully submits that this was not the only evidence to support this theory. Richardson, himself, admitted to Detective Ladwig that he called his father and told him he had killed someone besides Ms. Lee (T.4874).

The Fifth District correctly determined that "evidence of Floyd's murder on February 12 was relevant and admissible to show Richardson's motive for the subsequent murder of Lee." State v. Richardson, supra, at 757-58. It correctly found that on February 13, he had called his father asking for money so he could leave town because he had 'just killed a man." Id. It correctly found that "the evidence of Floyd's murder was admissible to show that Richardson's desire to avoid apprehension motivated him to commit the robbery and murder of Lee so that he could obtain money to leave Florida." Id. The Fifth District correctly determined that the fact "the bullets which killed Floyd and Lee came from a .22 caliber firearm," was relevant and admissible. It correctly determined "the statements Richardson made to the police on February 14, 1991 (item 6) are admissible in evidence because such statements qualify as admissions against interest under section 90.803 (18), Florida Statutes (1991), and are relevant." Id.

POINT VI

RICHARDSON'S SIXTH CLAIM REGARDING THE REASONABLE DOUBT INSTRUCTION HAS NOT BEEN PRESERVED, AND HAS BEEN DECIDED ON THE MERITS BY THIS COURT ADVERSELY TO HIM.

Richardson did not object to the reading of the standard reasonable doubt jury instruction either before or after the Guilt Phase instructions were given (T.5269-5310). Nor did he propose an alternate instruction. His sixth claim is procedurally barred. Etsy v. State, 642 So. 2d 1074, 1079-80 (Fla. 1994). On the merits: "'[T]aken as a whole, the instructions correctly conveyed the concept of reasonable doubt to the jury.' There is no reasonable likelihood that the jurors who determined [Richardson's] guilt applied the instructions in a way that violated the Constitution." Esty at 1080; citing Victor v. Nebraska, 511 U.S.

_____, 114 S.Ct. 1239, 1251, 127 L.Ed.2d 547 (1994); quoting Holland v. United States, 348 U.S. 121, 140, 75 S.Ct. 127, 138, 99 L.Ed.2d 547 (1954).

POINT VII

FLORIDA'S DEATH PENALTY IS CONSTITUTIONAL.

By now, this Court has become well versed in the **boilerplate** argument Richardson presents as his seventh claim at pp.66-83 of his brief, despite its repeated rejection. See e.g., Hunter v.

State, 660 So. 2d 244 (Fla. 1995); Fotopolous v. State, 608 So. 2d 784, 794 n.7 (Fla. 1992), cert. denied, 113 S.Ct. 2377 (1993). makes no reference to the record. Each claim and sub-claim he lists has already been decided adversely to his position. In addition, all of these "claims" are procedurally barred because they were not preserved at trial. The State would respectfully request this Court to expressly deny those claims which are procedurally barred on procedural bar grounds. See e.g., Hunter, at 252-54; Ventura v. State, 560 So. 2d 217 (Fla.), cert. denied, 498 U.S. 855 (1990); Swafford v. State, 533 So. 2d 270 (Fla. 1988), cert. denied, 103 L.Ed.2d 944 (1989); Eutzy v. State, 458 So. 2d 755 (Fla. 1984), cert. denied, 471 U.S. 1045 (1985). Each claim will be addressed as they appear in Richardson's brief, and the State will include an additional argument as to Proportionality as such was not addressed in Richardson's brief.

1. The Jury

a. Standard Jury Instructions

At pp. 67-68 of his brief, Richardson states:

The jury plays a crucial role in capital sentencing. Its penalty verdict carries great weight. Nevertheless, the jury instructions are such as to assure arbitrariness and to maximize discretion in reaching the penalty verdict.

Without specific reference to which instructions he is now in fact

challenging, and no record support for his allegations, his argumentative and unsupported conclusion quite simply constitutes insufficient briefing of an issue for appellate review. Even if he were to argue with specificity, any potential argument raised would be waived because he accepted the penalty phase jury instructions as given (T.5474-76, 5494-5501). See e.g., Ponticelli v. State, 618 so. 2d 154 (1993), cert. denied, 114 S.Ct. 352; Harris v. State, 438 So. 2d 787 (Fla..1983), cert. denied, 104 S.Ct. 2181. This nebulous claim is procedurally barred.

b. Majority Verdicts

On p. 68 of his brief, Richardson argues Florida's "sentencing scheme is also infirm because it places great weight on margins for death as slim **as** a bare majority." If Richardson raised this claim below, the State could not locate it and his failure to provide a record cite, clearly implies that this claim is procedurally barred. Hunter, at 252-53; Fotopolous, at 792, 794 n.7. This claim was expressly rejected in Hunter, at 252-53. See also, James v. State, 453 So. 2d 786, 792 (Fla. 1994).

\boldsymbol{c}_{\cdot} . Aggravators as an Element of the Crime.

⁴¹The State herein raises his failure to object to the penalty phase jury instructions as given **as** a procedural bar to any subsequent jury instruction challenge Richardson made in his boilerplate constitutional claim.

On p. 69 of his brief, Richardson argues "[o]ur law makes the aggravating circumstances into elements of the crime so as to make the defendant death-eligible." This claim was not raised below and is procedurally barred. Hunter, at 252-53; Fotopolous, at 792, 794. Even if not barred, this claim is foreclosed by binding precedent. See e.g., Jones v. State, 569 So. 2d 1234 (Fla. 1990); See also, Hildwin v. Florida, 490 U.S. 639 (1989).

d. The Caldwell Claim.

On p. 69 Richardson argues "[t]he standard instructions do not inform the jury of the great importance of its penalty verdict."

He asserts the jury is told its "recommendation" is just "advisory" in violation of the holding in Caldwell v. Mississippi, 472 U.S.

320 (1985). This claim was not raised below and is procedurally barred. Hunter, at 252-53; Fotopolous, at 792, 794 n.7. Even if preserved, it has been rejected on the merits. Id.

2. T h e

On p. 69, Richardson argues "the trial court has an ambiguous role in our capital punishment system." This claim was not raised below, is procedurally barred, and is meritless. *Hunter*, at 252-53; Fotopolous, at 792, 794 n.7.

3. The Florida Judicial System

At pp. 70-74 of his brief, Richardson argues he "was sentenced

by a judge selected by a racially discriminatory system." Nowhere in the record below does this argument appear, rendering it procedurally barred. Hunter, at 253; Fotopolous, at 792, 794. Even if it were properly preserved, this claim was raised in Hunter, and rejected as devoid of merit. Id.

4. Appellate Review

a. Proffitt

Richardson argues on p. 74, that this Court has not followed the requirements of **Proffitt v. Florida, 428** U.S. 242 (1976). This claim was not preserved below, is procedurally barred, and is meritless. **Hunter**, at 252-53; **Fotopolous**, at 792, 794 n.7.

b. Aggravating Circumstances

On pp. 74-77, Richardson argues that the aggravators are applied inconsistently at the appellate level. This claim was not preserved below, is procedurally barred, and is meritless. Hunter, at 252-53; Fotopolous, at 792, 794 n.7.

c. Appellate Reweighing

On p. 77, Richardson argues that Florida's Death Penalty Statute "does not have the independent appellate reweighing of aggravating and mitigating circumstances required by *Proffitt*, 428 U.S. at 252-53." This claim was not preserved below, is procedurally barred, and is meritless. *Hunter*, at 252-53;

Fotopolous, at 792, 794 n.7.

d. Procedural Technicalities

Also on pp 77-78, Richardson argues that the contemporaneous objection rule "has institutionalized disparate application of the law in capital sentencing." This claim was not preserved below, is procedurally barred, and is meritless. *Hunter*, at 252-53; *Fotopolous*, at 792, 794 n.7.

e. **Tedder**

On pp. 78-79 of his brief, Richardson complains that "[t]he failure of the Florida Appellate Review Process" is demonstrated by the inability of this Court to apply the Tedder⁴² Rule consistently. This claim was not preserved below, is procedurally barred, and is meritless. Hunter, at 252-53; Fotopolous, at 792, 794 n.7.

6. Other Problems With the Statute

a. Lack of Special Verdicts

At pp. 79-80, Richardson argues the death penalty statute is invalid because it does not provide for special verdicts. Again, Richardson has provided no record cites, and the State's review of the record concerning either aggravation/mitigation or felony murder/premeditated murder special verdicts, finds this claim

⁴² Tedder v. State, 322 So. 2d 908, 910 (Fla. 1975).

unpreserved and procedurally barred. *Hunter*, at 252-53; *Fotopolous*, at 792, 794 n.7. Both the aggravation/mitigation component and the felony murder/premeditated murder component are foreclosed by binding precedent. Id.; *Patter* v. State, 598 So. 2d 60 (Fla. 1992); Jones v. State, 569 So. 2d 1234 (Fla. 1990).

b. No Power to Mitigate.

On p. 80, Richardson argues that Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.800(b), "forbids the mitigation of a death sentence," which he alleges violates the "constitutional presumption against capital punishment." This claim was not preserved below, is procedurally barred, and is meritless. *Hunter*, at 252-53; *Fotopofous*, at 792, 794 n.7.

C Florida Creates a Presumption of Death.

At pp. 80-82 of his brief, Richardson argues that "every felony murder case . . . and every premeditated murder case..." create a presumption of death. Additionally, he argues the same applies to the heinous, atrocious, or cruel aggravator. These claims are procedurally barred. Hunter, at 252-53; Fotopolous, at 792, 794 n.7. Even if this claim was properly preserved, this Court has rejected it on the merits. Id.

d. Florida Instructs Juries Not to Consider Sympathy.

On p. 82, Richardson argues that the anti-sympathy jury

instruction is unconstitutional. Besides being procedurally barred, this claim has been expressly rejected by this Court and the United States Supreme Court. *Hunter*, at 253; *Saffle v. Parks*, 494 U.S. 484 (1990).⁴³

e. Electrocution is Cruel and Unusual Punishment.

Richardson's final boilerplate claim at **p.** 83, asserts that death by electrocution is cruel and unusual punishment. It is not preserved, and foreclosed by binding precedent. *Hunter*, at 252-53; *Fotopolous*, at 792, 794 n.7.

7. Proportionality

The jury recommended a sentence of death by a vote of 10 to 2 (T.5502). The trial court found three aggravating circumstances **as** follows:

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